Soft Skills

The software developer's life manual

John Z. Sonmez



For online information and ordering of this and other Manning books, please visit www.manning.com. The publisher offers discounts on this book when ordered in quantity. For more information, please contact:

Special Sales Department Manning Publications Co. 20 Baldwin Road PO Box 761 Shelter Island, NY 11964 Email: orders@manning.com

©2015 by Manning Publications Co. All rights reserved.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by means electronic, mechanical, photocopying, or otherwise, without prior written permission of the publisher.

Many of the designations used by manufacturers and sellers to distinguish their products are claimed as trademarks. Where those designations appear in the book, and Manning Publications was aware of a trademark claim, the designations have been printed in initial caps or all caps.

Secognizing the importance of preserving what has been written, it is Manning's policy to have the books we publish printed on acid-free paper, and we exert our best efforts to that end. Recognizing also our responsibility to conserve the resources of our planet, Manning books are printed on paper that is at least 15 percent recycled and processed without elemental chlorine.



Manning Publications Co. 20 Baldwin Road PO Box 761 Shelter Island, NY 11964 Development editor: Cynthia Kane Copyeditor: Jodie Allen Proofreader: Melody Dolab Illustrator: Višeslav Radović Typesetter: Marija Tudor Cover designer: Leslie Haimes

ISBN: 9781617292392

Printed in the United States of America 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 – EBM – 19 18 17 16 15 14

To all developers who strive for continuous self-improvement...

Who are not satisfied with good enough

Who always seek every opportunity to expand their horizons and explore the unknown

Whose thirst for knowledge is never fully quenched Who believe that software development means more than just writing code Who know that failure is not the end, but merely a step in the journey Who struggle at times, and sometimes fall, but always get back up again Who have the will and determination to seek the harder path in life And, most importantly, who are willing to help others along the way

Brief contents

1 Why this book is unlike any book you've ever read 1

SECTION 1 CAREER 7

- 2 Getting started with a "BANG!": Don't do what everyone else does 9
- 3 Thinking about the future: What are your goals? 13
- 4 People skills: You need them more than you think 18
- 5 Hacking the interview 23
- 6 Employment options: Enumerate your choices 29
- 7 What kind of software developer are you? 36
- 8 Not all companies are equal 43
- 9 Climbing the corporate ladder 49
- 10 Being a professional 55
- 11 Freedom: How to quit your job 61
- 12 Freelancing: Going out on your own 69
- 13 Creating your first product 77
- 14 Do you want to start a startup? 83
- 15 Working remotely survival strategies 89
- 16 Fake it till you make it 94
- 17 Resumes are BORING—Let's fix that 98
- 18 Don't get religious about technology 103

SECTION 2 MARKETING YOURSELF 107

- 19 Marketing basics for code monkeys 109
- 20 Building a brand that gets you noticed 115
- 21 Creating a wildly successful blog 121
- 22 Your primary goal: Add value to others 130
- 23 #UsingSocialNetworks 134
- 24 Speaking, presenting, and training: Speak geek 140
- 25 Writing books and articles that attract a following 146
- 26 Don't be afraid to look like an idiot 151

SECTION 3 LEARNING 157

- 27 Learning how to learn: How to teach yourself 159
- 28 My 10-step process 163
- 29 Steps 1-6: Do these once 167

- 30 Steps 7–10: Repeat these 176
- 31 Looking for mentors: Finding your Yoda 182
- 32 Taking on an apprentice: Being Yoda 187
- 33 Teaching: Learn you want? Teach you must. 191
- 34 Do you need a degree or can you "wing it?" 196
- 35 Finding gaps in your knowledge 201

SECTION 4 PRODUCTIVITY 207

- 36 It all starts with focus 209
- 37 My personal productivity plan 214
- 38 Pomodoro Technique 221
- 39 My quota system: How I get way more done than I should 228
- 40 Holding yourself accountable 233
- 41 Multitasking dos and don'ts 238
- 42 Burnout: I've got the cure! 243
- 43 How you're wasting your time 249
- 44 The importance of having a routine 255
- 45 Developing habits: Brushing your code 260
- 46 Breaking things down: How to eat an elephant 266
- 47 The value of hard work and why you keep avoiding it 272
- 48 Any action is better than no action 277

SECTION 5 FINANCIAL 283

- 49 What are you going to do with your paycheck? 285
- 50 How to negotiate your salary 292
- 51 Options: Where all the fun is 301
- 52 Bits and bytes of real estate investing 309
- 53 Do you really understand your retirement plan? 317
- 54 The danger of debt: SSDs are expensive 326
- 55 Bonus: How I retired at 33 332

SECTION 6 FITNESS 347

- 56 Why you need to hack your health 349
- 57 Setting your fitness criteria 354
- 58 Thermodynamics, calories, and you 359
- 59 Motivation: Getting your butt out of the chair 364
- 60 How to gain muscle: Nerds can have bulging biceps 369
- 61 How to get hash-table abs 377
- 62 Starting RunningProgram.exe 381
- 63 Standing desks and other hacks 385
- 64 Tech gear for fitness: Geeking out 390

SECTION 7 SPIRIT 395

- 65 How the mind influences the body 397
- 66 Having the right mental attitude: Rebooting 402
- 67 Building a positive self-image: Programming your brain 408
- 68 Love and relationships: Computers can't hold your hand 414
- 69 My personal success book list 419
- 70 Facing failure head-on 424
- 71 Parting words 430

Contents

Foreword xxi Foreword xxiii Preface xxvi Acknowledgments xxviii About This Book xxxi About the Author xxxiv

1 Why this book is unlike any book you've ever read 1

SECTION 1 CAREER 7

2 Getting started with a "BANG!": Don't do what everyone else does 9

Having a business mindset 9 How to think like a business 10

3 Thinking about the future: What are your goals? 13

How to set goals 14 *Tracking your goals* 16

4 People skills: You need them more than you think 18

Leave me alone, I just want to write code! 18 Learning how to deal with people 19 Everyone wants to feel important 19 ° Never criticize 20 Think about what the other person wants 20 ° Avoiding arguments 21

5 Hacking the interview 23

The quickest way to "pass" an interview 23 How I got my last job 24 Thinking outside of the box and building rapport 25 But what about the actual interview itself? 27 What can you do right now? 27

6 Employment options: Enumerate your choices 29

Option 1: The employee 29 Option 2: The independent consultant 31 Option 3: The entrepreneur 32 Which should you pick? 34

7 What kind of software developer are you? 36

Specialization is important 36 Getting specific about specialties 37 Kinds of specialties for software developers 39 Picking your specialty 40 What about the Polyglot programmer? 41

8 Not all companies are equal 43

Small companies and startups 43 Medium-size companies 45 Large companies 45 Software development companies versus companies with software developers 47 Choose carefully 48

9 Climbing the corporate ladder 49

Taking responsibility49Becoming visible50Educate yourself52Be the problem solver53What about politics?53

10 Being a professional 55

What is a professional? 56 Being a professional (forming good habits) 57 Doing what is right 58 Seeking quality and self-improvement 59

11 Freedom: How to quit your job 61

Going about things the smart way 61 Preparing to work for yourself 63 How much do you really work? 64 Cutting the cord 67

12 Freelancing: Going out on your own 69

Getting started 69 Ask someone you know 70 Best way to get clients 71 Setting your rate 72

13 Creating your first product 77

Finding an audience 77 Testing the market 80 Start small 81 Getting started 82

14 Do you want to start a startup? 83

Startup basics 83 Go big or go home 84 A typical startup lifecycle 85 Accelerators 86 Getting funded 86

15 Working remotely survival strategies 89

The challenges of being a hermit 89 Challenge 1: Time management 89 • Challenge 2: Selfmotivation 90 • Challenge 3: Loneliness 92 16 Fake it till you make it 94 What it means to fake it until you make it 94 Putting it into practice 95
17 Resumes are BORING—Let's fix that 98 You aren't a professional resume writer 99 Hiring a resume writer 99 Going the extra mile 101

What if you don't want to hire a professional? 102

18 Don't get religious about technology 103

We are all religious about technology 103 Everything is good 104 My conversion 105 Don't limit your options 106

SECTION 2 MARKETING YOURSELF 107

Marketing basics for code monkeys 19 109 What marketing yourself means 109 Why marketing yourself is important 110 How to market yourself 112 20 Building a brand that gets you noticed 115 What is a brand? 115 What makes up a brand? 116 Creating your own brand 118 21 Creating a wildly successful blog 121 Why are blogs so important? 121 Creating a blog 123 Keys to success 125 Getting more traffic 127 l can't guarantee you success 128

22 Your primary goal: Add value to others 130

Give people what they want 130 Give away 90% of what you do for free 131 The fast track to success 132 Offering more of yourself 133

23 #UsingSocialNetworks 134 Growing your network 134 Using social media effectively 135 Staying active 136 Networks and accounts 137

24 Speaking, presenting, and training: Speak geek 140 Why speaking live is so impactful 141 Getting started speaking 142 What about training? 143

25 Writing books and articles that attract a following 146

Why books and articles are important 146 Books and magazines don't pay 147 Getting published 148 Self-publishing 149

26 Don't be afraid to look like an idiot 151 Everything is uncomfortable at first 151 It's okay to look like an idiot 152 Take small steps (or dive right in) 153

SECTION 3 LEARNING 157

27 Learning how to learn: How to teach yourself 159 Dissecting the learning process 159 Teaching yourself 160

28 My 10-step process 163 *The idea behind the system 163 The 10-step system 165*

29 Steps 1–6: Do these once 167

Step 1: Get the big picture 167 Step 2: Determine scope 168 Step 3: Define success 170 Step 4: Find resources 171 Step 5: Create a learning plan 172 Step 6: Filter resources 174

30 Steps 7–10: Repeat these 176

Step 7: Learn enough to get started 176 Step 8: Play around 177 Step 9: Learn enough to do something useful 178 Step 10: Teach 180 Final thoughts 181

31 Looking for mentors: Finding your Yoda 182

Mentor qualities 182 Where to find a mentor 184 Virtual mentors 185 Recruiting a mentor 186

32 Taking on an apprentice: Being Yoda 187

Being a mentor 187 The benefits of mentorship 188 Picking a "worthy" apprentice 189

33 Teaching: Learn you want? Teach you must. 191

I'm not a teacher 191 *What happens when you teach?* 192 *Getting started* 193

34 Do you need a degree or can you "wing it?" 196

Do you need a degree to succeed? 196 Advantages to having a degree 198 What if you don't have a degree? 199

35 Finding gaps in your knowledge 201 Why we leave the gaps 201 Finding your gaps 202 Filling the gaps 204

SECTION 4 PRODUCTIVITY 207

36 It all starts with focus 209

What is focus? 209 The magic of focus 210 Getting more focus 211 It's not as easy as it sounds 212

37 My personal productivity plan 214

Overview 214 Quarterly planning 215 Monthly planning 215 Weekly planning 215 Daily planning and execution 218 Dealing with interruptions 218 Breaks and vacations 219

38 Pomodoro Technique 221

Pomodoro Technique overview 221 Using the Pomodoro Technique effectively 222 The mental game 224 How much work can you get done? 226

39	My quota	system: How I get way more done th	an I
	should	228	

The problem 228 Enter quotas 229 How the quota system works 230 Why the quota system works 231

40 Holding yourself accountable 233 Accountability 233 Becoming accountable to yourself 234

Becoming accountable to yourself 234 External accountability 236

41 Multitasking dos and don'ts 238

Why multitasking is generally bad 238 Batching is much more productive 239 What about true multitasking? 240

42 Burnout: I've got the cure! 243

How you burn out 243 In reality, you're just hitting a wall 244 On the other side of the wall 245 Pushing past the wall 246

43 How you're wasting your time 249

The biggest time waster of all 249 Giving up the TV 250 Other time wasters 251 Tracking your time 253

44 The importance of having a routine 255

Routines make you 255 Creating a routine 256 Getting more detailed 257

266

45 Developing habits: Brushing your code 260 Understanding habits 260 Recognizing bad habits and altering them 262 Forming new habits 264 46 Breaking down things: How to eat an elephant Why bigger isn't always better 266

Breaking down things 268 How to break down things 269 Breaking down problems 271

47 The value of hard work and why you keep avoiding it 272

Why is hard work so darn...hard? 272 I'll just work "smarter" 273 Hard work is boring 274 The reality 274 Working hard: How to do it 275

48 Any action is better than no action 277

Why we refuse to take action 277 What happens when you don't take action 278 What is the worst that could happen? 279 It's easier to steer a moving car 280 What can you do now? 281

SECTION 5 FINANCIAL 283

49 What are you going to do with your paycheck? 285

Stop thinking short term 285 Assets and liabilities 287 Back to your paycheck 290

50 How to negotiate your salary 292

Negotiations begin before you even apply for the job 292 How you get the job is extremely important 293 First person to name a number loses 295 What about when you're asked to name a number first? 296 What if you're asked about your current salary? 297 When you have an offer 298 Some final advice 299

51 Options: Where all the fun is 301

Option basics 301 Digging a little deeper 303 Selling options 306 More complex options 307

52 Bits and bytes of real estate investing 309

Why real estate investment? 310 Okay, so how do I do it? 313 First step: Education 313 Taking action 315 Use property management 316

53 Do you really understand your retirement plan? 317

Retirement is all about working backwards 318 Calculating your retirement goal 319 Path 1: 401(k), IRAs, or other retirement accounts 320 Path 2: Setting up an early retirement or aiming to get rich 322 What if I am stuck in the middle or close to retirement? 324

54 The danger of debt: SSDs are expensive 326

Why debt is generally bad 326 Some common debt follies 328 Not all debt is bad 330

55 Bonus: How I retired at 33 332

What it means to be "retired" 332 How I got started 333 Rental woes 335 Gaining traction 336 Grinding it out 337 Short circuit? 338 More grinding it out 338 Turning a corner 341 The lucky break 342 Hard work mode 343 Multiple passive income streams 344 A quick analysis 344

SECTION 6 FITNESS 347

56 Why you need to hack your health 349

Confidence 350 Brain power 351 Fear 352

57 Setting your fitness criteria 354

Picking a specific goal 354 Creating milestones 355 Measuring your progress 357 Living a healthy lifestyle 357

58 Thermodynamics, calories, and you 359 What is a calorie? 359

> Losing weight is simple 360 How many calories are you consuming? 361 How many calories are you burning? 361 Utilizing calories to achieve your goal 362

59 Motivation: Getting your butt out of the chair 364 What motivates you? 364 Rewarding yourself too early 365 Motivation ideas 366 Just get it done! 367

60 How to gain muscle: Nerds can have bulging biceps 369

How muscles grow 370 Weightlifting basics 370 Different goals 371 Strength 371 • Size 371 • Endurance 372 Getting started 372 What lifts should you do? 373 What to eat 375

61 How to get hash-table abs 377

Abs are made in the kitchen 377 Your body doesn't want you to have abs 378 What can you do about it? 379

62 Starting RunningProgram.exe 381

Why you might want to run 381 Getting started running 382 Advice for getting started 383

63 Standing desks and other hacks 385

Standing desks and treadmills 385 Food hacks 386 Eggs in the microwave 387 • Plain nonfat Greek yogurt 388 • Frozen meats 388

64 Tech gear for fitness: Geeking out 390

Step counters and pedometers 390 Wireless scales 391 *Combo devices 392 PUSH strength 392 Headphones 393 Apps 394*

SECTION 7 SPIRIT 395

65 How the mind influences the body 397

It starts with the mind 398 The mind and body connection 399

66 Having the right mental attitude: Rebooting 402

What is positivity? 402 The positive effects of positivity 405 How to reboot your attitude 405 Change your thoughts 406 ° Meditation 406 ° Play more 407 ° Books 407

67 Building a positive self-image: Programming your brain 408

What is self-image? 408 Your self-image is difficult to change 410 Reprogramming your brain 411

68 Love and relationships: Computers can't hold your hand 414

Why software developers sometimes have a hard time finding love 414 Understanding the game 415 So, all I have to do is be confident, right? 417 It's a numbers game 417

69 My personal success book list 419

Self-help and inspirational books 419 The War of Art 419 • How to Win Friends and Influence People 420 • Think and Grow Rich 420

```
Psycho-Cybernetics 421 • The Power of Positive
Thinking 421 • Atlas Shrugged 421
```

Software development books 422

Code Complete 422 • Clean Code: A Handbook of Agile Software Craftmanship 422 • Head First Design Patterns 422

Investing 423

The Millionaire Real Estate Investor 423 • Rich Dad, Poor Dad 423 • No-Hype Options Trading: Myths, Realities, and Strategies That Really Work 423

70 Facing failure head-on 424

Why are we so afraid of failure, anyway? 424 Failure isn't defeat 426 Failure is the road to success 426 Learn to embrace failure 427

71 Parting words 430

- Appendix A If you can write code, you can understand finances 433
- Appendix B How the stock market works: Rules of the system 441
- Appendix C Garbage in, garbage out: Diet and nutrition basics 448
- Appendix D How to eat healthy: Pizza is not a food group 453

Index 459

Foreword

I've long been an advocate for soft skills. Coding is so harsh and cold. Everything is so easily measured in the hard world of code. How many lines of code can you write? How productive can you be? Did those tests pass? It's easy to get caught up in the measurement of it all and lose sight of the human aspect of technology.

Are you liked? Are you appreciated? Are you kind and welcoming? Do you inspire with your positivity and supportive demeanor, or just with your ruthless competence? Are you taking care of yourself, your back, your buns, and your brain? I've been coding for well over 25 years and, let me tell you, things break down if you don't take care of them.

Perhaps you're a consultant, as many of us are. Are you taking care of your finances? Money doesn't compile quite the same way as code, as much as you'd wish it did. All of these skills and so many more make up the so-called soft skills. What John has done for us with this book is to compile all of the things one needs to know to form, well, a well-rounded software professional! After many years of fail-fast, fail-often, John speaks from vast experience about what works and what doesn't. *Soft Skills* is a near complete brain dump from a successful engineer and it gives you useful, practical, and actionable advice on a wide array of topics.

I'd also recommend you check out my free video documentary, "Get Involved in Tech" at http://www.getinvolvedintech.com for a video discussion of what it means to be a social developer, just like John talks about in Section 2 of this very book! John and I think similarly about these things which is why I'm thrilled to be writing this foreword. Enjoy this book. Take it a little at a time, jump around, absorb, and return to it. Continuous integration and continuous improvement work in wetware as well as software!

> Scott Hanselman Software Architect, Engineer, Author, Teacher

Foreword

Late in the evening of Friday, December 5, 2014 (my 62nd birthday), I received an email from John Sonmez, the author of this book. He wrote, asking me to write a foreword by Monday, December 8. In John's email was a zip file with several dozen Word files — I found this presentation of the manuscript to be inconvenient and annoying, and I didn't have time to generate a PDF of the whole book.

I wasn't pleased to get such a request. My wife had just had double knee replacements and was in rehab. I had a flying lesson Saturday morning and planned to spend the rest of the day with my wife. I was scheduled to board a plane to London Saturday evening and teach courses Monday through Friday. So there was no way, not by Monday. John hadn't given me enough time, and I told him so.

Just before driving to the airport, I found John had sent me a Christmas package of cheeses and ham. It included a card, thanking me for considering writing the foreword. Also, I received another email from John in which he had begged his publisher for another day, so he could give me until Tuesday. He sent me several other imploring emails, but I told him that there was no reasonable chance, and that he should expect nothing from me.

I drove to the airport, boarded the plane, slept through the flight, and took a taxi to my favorite London hotel. I was wiped out by the travel and played Minecraft in a stupor until I finally crashed. On Monday I taught a full day, and then had to do some work on the SMC Compiler for Episode 30 of my Clean Code video series on http://cleancoders.com. Today is Tuesday, December 9. It's the second day of my class, and I just started the students working on a two-hour exercise. I checked my email and found that John had sent me another message with a simple PDF of the whole book. Okay, that would make things easier. I could just open that file and scroll up and down the book. Nice.

Note what I'm telling you: John did what was necessary. He *thought* about what I might need and want. He followed his original request with inducements and helpful aids. He clearly spent a lot of time and effort working to make my job easier, on the off-chance that it would make it possible for me to write this foreword. Even after I'd declined and told him it was almost certainly impossible, he continued to find ways to induce and aid me. He didn't give up. He didn't back down. As long as there was a chance, he continued to search for a way.

And *that* is what this book is about. It's about getting to success. It's about the habits and strategies, procedures and mindsets, and tricks and hacks that you can use to push yourself ever closer to success. John's actions toward me, after his original request, are an example, and he is an exemplar, of what he has written in this book.

So, with two hours to kill while the students did their exercise, I cracked the PDF open and began to read. Whoa! Look at the topics! He talks about physical fitness. He talks about options trading. He talks about real estate. He talks about spiritual balance. He talks about quitting your job, starting a consulting business, joining a startup, building a product, climbing the corporate ladder, marketing yourself, and the list goes on...

Knowing I'd never be able to read the entire book in two hours, and that I wasn't going to write the foreword anyway, I read and skimmed, and read and skimmed again. But as I did, I started to get the feeling that John had a message and that it was a good one! It was a holistic message, one that every software developer (and everybody else, for that matter) ought to hear.

Do you know how to write a resume? Do you know how to negotiate your salary? Do you know how to set your rates as an independent consultant? Do you know how to weigh the risks of quitting your job to become a contractor? Do you understand how to get funding for a startup? Do you understand the cost of watching TV? (Yes, you read that right.)

These are the things this book talks about, and can teach you. They're things you need to know. I haven't read the whole book, but I've read *in* the book and skimmed a lot of it, and that was enough, because here I am, writing this foreword, after all. My conclusion is that if you're a young software developer trying to find your way in this complex industry, then you're holding a book that will give you a lot of insight and good advice.

John figured out a way to get me to write this foreword, despite a bumpy beginning, an impossible schedule, and the overall difficulty of the situation. He applied the principles that he writes about in this book, and, once again, gained success!

ROBERT (UNCLE BOB) MARTIN

Preface

I'd love to be able to give you a fantastic story about how I came to write this book. I'd like to tell you that I was meditating in the desert when an eagle flew down, landed on my shoulder, and whispered in my ear, "You must write a book about soft skills for software developers." I'd like to tell you that the book came to me in a dream; that I was awakened by a vision of the outline of the book in the middle of the night and that I started frantically writing chapters, trying to capture what I had seen.

But the truth is that I wrote the book because I felt that I had to.

Throughout my life as a software developer, I've been on many different journeys. I've taken some right paths, some wrong paths, and some paths that I'm still not sure about. Along the way, I haven't had much help or guidance. I've never felt like there was someone who had cut a trail for me that I could follow. I've never felt like there was someone who could show me how to be the most successful software developer I could be not just in writing code—but in life in general.

Sure, there have been plenty of people who have influenced my life, and plenty of people who've taught me all kinds of things about software development and more. I certainly owe what I've accomplished in life, in part, to those people. But I've never found a single person or guide that condensed all this information into one place. Things like

 Not only how to manage my career, but how to make the right choices about my career

- How to learn in a better and more efficient way and how to be as productive as possible, and what to do when I feel unmotivated and discouraged
- The basics of finance, physical and mental health, and how all those things affect me in my role as a software developer and as a person living on this planet.

I wrote this book because I wanted to provide that guide — or at least to do the best job I could of providing it with what I've learned from my personal experience and from the experiences of other successful software developers, financial experts, fitness gurus, and motivational speakers that I've had the pleasure of meeting and interacting with. I wrote this book because I felt that it would be a waste to not share what I have learned and what I have experienced.

I wrote this book, for you...

...to make your journey a little easier

...to help you become a better version of yourself

...and, most importantly, to help you not feel so alone in your journey through life as a software developer.

Did reading this make you feel inspired?

Good. Let's begin the journey!

Acknowledgments

If I have seen further than others, it is by standing upon the shoulders of giants.

-Isaac Newton

Few books are written without the help of many people. Certainly, no books are published and distributed without the help of a whole lot of people. This book is no different, so I'd like to take a moment to thank the "giants" in my life.

First, I want to thank all the people who've positively impacted my life and have helped me become the person I am today—and who have helped me realize that I still have a long way to go.

I'd like to thank my coworkers and bosses, throughout my career, who've challenged me, mentored me, given me enough rope to hang myself, and have helped me cut down the rope before something truly bad happened. There are too many of you to name, but you know who you are.

I'd like to thank the authors of the many books I've read who have made me a better person and given me new perspectives in life. Again, too many to name, but if I was hard pressed to name a few, Robert C. Martin (Uncle Bob), Steven Pressfield, and Dale Carnegie come to mind as some of the most influential authors I've read.

So I am especially grateful and honored that Robert C. Martin found the time in his busy schedule to contribute a foreword to my book, even though I asked him way too late. I am also thrilled that Scott Hanselman penned a second foreword, also at the last minute, and that he shares many of my views on the soft skills developers need. My sincere thanks to both of them for endorsing my book.

I'd like to give a special thanks to my family—especially my wife Heather and my daughter Sophia—who had to deal with my mood swings, my over-commitment of time, and the overall craziness of writing a book. My wife was also my proofreader who read every chapter and corrected it before it was sent to the editor—making me look a lot smarter than I am.

I'd also like to thank my dad, Sahin, who taught me the value of hard work, without which this book would have never been written in the first place, and there'd be nothing to write about anyway!

And I can't forget my mom, Laura, who, more than anyone else, taught me to believe in myself, regardless of what anyone else says—an indispensable quality for an entrepreneur.

I'd also like to thank Derick Bailey, Josh Earl, and Charles Max Wood, also known as the Entreprogrammers (http://entreprogrammers.com), who are part of my weekly mastermind group and have encouraged, motivated, inspired, and challenged me at every step of writing this book.

Of course, I need to thank everyone at Manning Publications, without whom this book wouldn't have been published—or perhaps it would have been published in some completely unrecognizable form.

First, Marjan Bace, the publisher of Manning, who had the foresight to realize that a book of this kind was exactly what software developers needed.

Next, I'd like to thank my editor, Robin de Jongh, who brought me into the Manning fold, helped me come up with the concept for *Soft Skills,* and provided support and encouragement during the process of writing the book.

I'd like also like to thank my development editor, Cynthia Kane, who reviewed the earliest versions of the manuscript and provided invaluable feedback and advice in a way that made me feel more inspired to keep writing, rather than discouraged. Thanks to Candace Gillhoolley, who did an excellent job of marketing the book and who taught me a few tricks about marketing that I'll be using in the future.

A big thanks to Jodie Allen and Mary Piergies, who had the difficult job of coordinating everything that went along with getting this book through production, and again to Jodie for copyediting the entire manuscript.

Another big thanks to Rebecca Rinehart for coordinating the MEAP (Manning Early Access Program) release of *Soft Skills* and for dealing with my extreme pickiness regarding the cover of the book, although in the end Manning conducted a survey of customers who had preordered the book and let them choose the final cover, which you now see on the book.

Thanks also to graphic artist Višeslav Radović, who perfectly illustrated the visuals I tried to convey in the book. And a thank you to all the other staff at Manning who made this book possible.

Special thanks to the reviewers who read the manuscript in its early drafts and whose comments helped to improve the book: Heather Campbell, Ionel Condor, Luke Greenleaf, Robert Hanson, Rebecca Jones, Anita Lugomer, Matthew Margolis, Javier Muñoz Mellid, Edward G. Prentice, Alvin Scudder, Craig Smith, David Stanek, Lourens Steyn, and Jerry Tan.

Finally, I'd like to thank the Simple Programmer audience. Many of you have contributed by asking questions, providing feedback, and inspiring and encouraging me in everything I do.

About This Book

Hey, I'm glad you picked up this book, but you're probably wondering what it's about. What the heck is a "software developer's life manual" anyway? That's an excellent question, and I'll try to answer it here — briefly.

Think of it this way: there are a lot of good books out there that will teach you how to write better code, learn a new technology, or do things like work on a team or run a software project. You might even find some books that talk about your career and how to improve it, or simply how to pass interview questions. But have you ever found a book that told you how to become a better version of the software developer you already are?

Have you ever found a book that told you not only how to get a better job and make more money, but what to do with that money and how to eventually leave that job to become an entrepreneur — if you so desire?

Have you ever found a book that told you the steps to successfully build a reputation for yourself in the software development industry and at the same time taught you how to become stronger and healthier physically, mentally, and spiritually?

I haven't either, so that's why I decided to write a book about all that ...and more.

Regardless of who you are, this book is written for *you*. And I don't say that lightly. There are chapters in this book that cover everything from hacking the interview process and crafting a killer resume, to creating a wildly successful blog and building your own personal brand, to being extremely productive and learning how to deal with burnout, and even investing in real estate and losing weight. And you'll also find an entire section dedicated to my special technique for learning things quickly—the same one I used to create over 55 online courses in less than two years for the online training company Pluralsight.

Seriously, no matter who you are, or where you are in your software development career, there's something in this book for you. There is even a chapter devoted to meeting that special person—you know what I mean!

Chapter 1 will tell you more about what you'll find in the book and how it's organized, but before you get into it, I want to point to a few online resources that might be helpful to you as you read the book. You'll find links to useful websites sprinkled throughout the chapters, but below are a few staples you're sure to find useful.

Online Resources

• The Simple Programmer Blog: http://simpleprogrammer.com

Here you'll find a huge collection of blog posts that have to do with many of the topics in this book. It's also the best way to get in contact with me and find other valuable information that I post for free on a weekly basis. (While you're there, make sure you sign up for my email list and you'll get all kinds of freebies and other good stuff that I produce each week.)

• My YouTube channel: http://youtube.com/jsonmez

Here I post videos about many of the topics you'll find in this book and it's all for free. If you're interested in learning about a topic I cover in this book, try doing a search on my YouTube channel—there's a good chance you'll find a video I did on it.

 How to Market Yourself as a Software Developer Course: http:// devcareerboost.com/m

If you're interested in the section in this book on marketing yourself, go to this site to buy the full course that goes into detail about building a personal brand and making a name for yourself in the software development industry. This is the most popular thing I've ever produced, by far. I'll even give you a special discount because you purchased this book. Use the code SOFTSKILLS to get \$100 off the complete package.

 10 Steps to Learn Anything Quickly Course: http://simpleprogrammer .com/ss-10steps

This is another in-depth course that goes into detail about what I teach you in the Learning section of this book. If you enjoy that section and want a little more in-depth treatment of the subject, check out the course to find out more.

Entreprogrammers: http://entreprogrammers.com

If you're interested in becoming an entrepreneur or starting your own business, check out this free, weekly podcast that I prepare with three other developers/entrepreneurs (developerneurs).

• Get Up and CODE: http://getupandcode.com

Finally, if the Fitness section appeals to you, you'll probably enjoy this free podcast I produced about fitness for software developers and IT professionals.

Author Online

Purchase of *Soft Skills* includes free access to a private web forum run by Manning Publications where you can make comments about the book, ask questions, and receive help and feedback from the author and other users. To access the forum and subscribe to it, point your web browser to www.manning.com/SoftSkills.

This page provides information on how to get on the forum once you're registered, what kind of help is available, and the rules of conduct on the forum. The Author Online forum and the archives of previous discussions will be accessible from the publisher's website as long as the book is in print.

About the Author

John Sonmez is the founder of Simple Programmer (http://simpleprogrammer.com), where he tirelessly pursues his vision of transforming complex issues into simple solutions. He has published over 50 courses on topics such as iOS, Android, .NET, Java, and game development for the online developer training resource Pluralsight. He also hosts the Get Up and CODE podcast, where he talks about fitness for programmers (http://getupandcode.com), and the Entre-



programmers podcast, where he and three other developers/entrepreneurs share their real stories of building their online businesses (http:// entreprogrammers.com).

John is a life coach for software developers, and helps software engineers, programmers, and other technical professionals boost their careers and live a more fulfilled life. He empowers them to accomplish their goals by making the complex simple.